
 

 
 
Agenda\External Partnerships Select Committee\7 June 2022 

 
 

Surrey Heath Borough Council 

Surrey Heath House 
Knoll Road 
Camberley 

Surrey GU15 3HD 
Telephone: (01276) 707100 
Facsimile: (01276) 707177 

DX: 32722 Camberley 
Web Site: www.surreyheath.gov.uk 

Department: Democratic Services 

Division:  Legal & Democratic Services 

Please ask for: Eddie Scott 

Direct Tel: 01276 707335 

E-Mail: democratic.services@surreyheath.gov.uk 

    

 
 

To: The Members of the External Partnerships Select Committee 
(Councillors: Vivienne Chapman (Chairman), Morgan Rise (Vice Chairman), 
Dan Adams, Richard Brooks, Paul Deach, Tim FitzGerald, Mark Gordon, 
Josephine Hawkins, David Lewis, Emma-Jane McGrath, Liz Noble, Pat Tedder and 
Valerie White) 

 
In accordance with the Substitute Protocol at Part 4 of the Constitution, 
Members who are unable to attend this meeting should give their apologies and 
arrange for one of the appointed substitutes, as listed below, to attend.  
Members should also inform their group leader of the arrangements made. 
 

Substitutes: Councillors Graham Alleway, Rodney Bates, Cliff Betton, Stuart Black, 
Edward Hawkins, Charlotte Morley, Darryl Ratiram and Graham Tapper 
 

 

Dear Councillor, 
 
A meeting of the External Partnerships Select Committee will be held at Council 
Chamber, Surrey Heath House, Knoll Road, Camberley, GU15 3HD on Tuesday, 7 June 
2022 at 7.00 pm.  The agenda will be set out as below.  

 
Please note that this meeting will be recorded. 

 
Yours sincerely 

 
Damian Roberts 

 
Chief Executive 

 
 

AGENDA 
  Pages 
1  Apologies for Absence   

 
 

2  Chairman's Announcements and Welcome to Guests   
 

 

3  Minutes of the Previous Meeting   
 
To confirm and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 1 March 2022.   

3 - 8 

4  Declarations of Interest   
 
Members are invited to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests and 
non-pecuniary interests they may have with respect to matters which are 
to be considered at this meeting. Members who consider they may have 

 

Public Document Pack



 

 
 
Agenda\External Partnerships Select Committee\7 June 2022 

an interest are invited to consult the Monitoring Officer or the Democratic 
Services Officer prior to the meeting.  

5  Accent Housing   
 
To receive a presentation from Accent Housing.  

 

6  Surrey Police   
 

9 - 12 

7  OPCC Police and Crime Panel – Update from Surrey Heath Panel 
Member   
 

13 - 46 

8  Bisley Village Hall   
 

47 - 48 

9  Committee Work Programme   
 

49 - 50 

 



Minutes\External Partnerships Select Committee\1 March 2022

  Minutes of a Meeting of the External 
Partnerships Select Committee held at 
Council Chamber, Surrey Heath 
House, Knoll Road, Camberley, GU15 
3HD on 1 March 2022  

 
 + Cllr Vivienne Chapman (Chairman) 
 + Cllr Morgan Rise (Vice Chairman)  
 

- 
+ 
- 
- 
 
- 

Cllr Dan Adams 
Cllr Richard Brooks 
Cllr Sarah Jane Croke 
Cllr Paul Deach 
Cllr Tim FitzGerald 
Cllr Mark Gordon 

+ 
+ 
 
+ 
+ 

Cllr Josephine Hawkins 
Cllr David Lewis 
Cllr Emma-Jane McGrath 
Cllr Pat Tedder 
Cllr Helen Whitcroft * 

 +  Present 
 -  Apologies for absence presented 

* In attendance virtually 
 
Members in Attendance:  Cllr Shaun Garrett, Cllr Sashi Mylvaganam, 
  
Officers Present: Louise Livingston and Nick Steevens 
  

19/EP  Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 29 November 2021 were confirmed by the 
Committee and signed by the Chairman.  
  
   

20/EP  Citizens Advice Surrey Heath 
 
The Committee received a presentation from Kate Sawdy, CEO, in respect of the 
work of Citizens Advice Surrey Heath.  
  
Citizens Advice Surrey Heath (CASH) gave advice across a whole range of 
problems for people in Surrey Heath, including benefits, debt, housing, 
employment, family issues and immigration. CASH saw the ‘whole person’, and 
more than ever, clients were visiting CASH with multiple problems. CASH’s service 
was primarily delivered by highly trained volunteers and was quality assured by 
the national network to the highest standards. There was an emphasis for CASH 
to help their clients find solutions without escalation and that their service was 
always impartial, confidential and free.  
  
CASH also collected data about their clients and their issues and used this 
information on a national but also a more local level in order to campaign for 
change where needed. 
  
In January 2022, more than 270,000 people sought one-to-one advice from 
Citizens Advice across England and Wales, topping a previous high of 265,000 in 
November 2021.  24,000 required some type of crisis support such as food bank 
referrals and charitable payments - the highest on record for Citizens Advice.  In 

Public Document PackPage 3

Agenda Item 3 



Minutes\External Partnerships Select Committee\1 March 2022

addition the number of people supported with energy debts hit more than 8,000, 
the highest on record.  The average energy debt of CASH clients with such cases 
now stood at £1,450, up from £1,330 in 2020. 
  
On a local level, comparing the 21/22 financial year to 20/21, enquiries received by 
CASH relating to debt had increased by 56% and enquiries relating to utilities and 
communications bills had increased by 79%. However positively, enquiries 
regarding employment had fell by 22% on the previous year. Furthermore, CASH 
had experienced record numbers of enquiries in January including 257 enquiries in 
respect of the Household Support Fund.  
  
Arising from Members’ questions and comments the following points were noted: 
  

          Part of CASH’s plan for 2022-25 was to increase the diversity and 
knowledge of its team of staff and volunteers. However, it was noted that it 
took at least 6 months of training before a CASH volunteer made a 
meaningful contribution to the organisation; and this made it difficult to 
successfully recruit and retain younger volunteers. The Council had the 
opportunity to offer social media support to CASH in respect of the 
recruitment of volunteers through digital channels. Furthermore, whilst 
CASH services and volunteering opportunities were already promoted via 
various community magazines, there was potential to further promote 
volunteering opportunities with CASH in Heathscene.  

  
          Outstanding work had been conducted in respect of promoting the Surrey 

Heath Hardship Fund. However, it was noted that in-need, eligible residents 
were still unaware of the fund, as demonstrated by recent referrals at the 
Old Dean Free Food Stall. It was noted that unfortunately applications for 
the fund closed, before the rise in the energy price cap due to take place on 
1 April 2022.  
  

          In respect of the recruitment of volunteers there were potential 
opportunities to engage with groups such as the University of the Third Age 
and the Rotary Club. CASH had recently presented to a group of NHS staff, 
in respect of the service and long-term volunteering opportunities.  
  

The Committee thanked Kate and her team for their continued work supporting 
those in need within Surrey Heath. 
  
   

21/EP  Accent Housing 
 
The Committee received a presentation from Julie Wittich, Executive Director of 
Assets and Sustainability, and Holly Sheppard, Contracts Manager, in respect of 
Accent Housing’s future plans, recent charges, and an update as to the ongoing 
maintenance issues in relation to its Surrey Heath properties.   
Julie Wittich had joined the organisation in the role of Executive Director of Assets 
& Sustainability, which reflected Accent’s new focus on asset management, and 
building capacity and undertaking a review of its maintenance service.  
  

Page 4



Minutes\External Partnerships Select Committee\1 March 2022

Accent had secured a significant grant from the Social Housing Decarbonisation 
Funds and would be investing in a pilot scheme for the use of part of the funds, 
including 66 properties within Surrey Heath, to a total of £40,000. Such initiatives 
were key to Accent’s focus to make its assets more energy efficient and to tackle 
fuel poverty.  
  
Following Storm Eunice, Accent had prioritised resulting repairs which mostly 
consisted of roofing, fencing and treework issues. Whilst recruitment and retention 
issues still continued in relation to the maintenance service, Accent was working 
with Axis Europe in order to ensure the recruitment of quality operatives and the 
use of additional sub-contractors in order to increase capacity. During 2021/22 
(Year to date), 62.9% of repairs were completed within 15 days against a target of 
95%. Furthermore, despite noting that some repairs, where prior specification work 
needed to be undertaken, could not be completed on the first visit, the targeted 
rates for first time fixes and the targeted customer satisfaction letter had also fallen 
below the target standard.  
  
In total, so far this financial year, 838 planned works had been completed, which 
would soon include new radiators at Cranmore Court, which was due to be 
completed by the end of February. Customer satisfaction still continued to be 
lower than wished. This was partly attributable to challenges in respect of material 
supply which had been caused by the pandemic and Brexit.  
  
Arising from the Committee’s questions and comments the following points were 
noted: 
  

          The current backlog of outstanding responsive repairs, which had failed to 
be dealt with outside the targeted 28 day routine period, currently stood at 
circa 500 within Surrey Heath. Accent regularly reviewed their ‘WIP (Work 
in Progress)’, of outstanding maintenance repairs, which required a fine 
balancing act between aiming to meet the 28 day routine period for newer 
jobs and also tackling the long-outstanding jobs.  

          Accent had 100% nominations from the Council in respect of filling its 
homes; and Accent did not have its own allocations policy. However, there 
was an opportunity for Accent Housing to perhaps use tools such as its 
tenancy agreements and its procedures on anti-social behaviour to split 
apart disruptive combinations of tenants. In the case of new build estates, 
local lettings plans, which would be created in conjunction with the Council, 
could enable the creation of more socially sustainable communities and 
provided a mix between larger and smaller properties and between 
employed and unemployed tenants.  

          There were multiple cases of urgent, severe repairs which hadn’t been 
completed and had been outstanding for very long periods of more than 6 
months. Furthermore, Councillors had heard horror stories from their 
residents in respect of inadequate repairs and terrible communication. It 
was felt that the cases reflected, not just the scale of the backlog, but the 
severity of the cases included.  

          Accent Housing was terminating its maintenance contract with Axis 
Europe. Accent had received assurances that they wanted an amicable, 
demobilisation of the contract. The new contract with the future 

Page 5



Minutes\External Partnerships Select Committee\1 March 2022

maintenance contractor would return to the traditional method of payment, 
where Accent would only pay for completed jobs.  

          Accent and the Council had worked in exemplary partnership in respect of 
the Afghan Locally Employed Staff (LES) Relocation Scheme. 

  
Accent agreed to arrange a single point of contact to be arranged for Surrey Heath 
Borough Councillors and Members thanked Julie and Holly for their time and 
presentation.  
  
   

22/EP  The Hope Hub Report 
 

Mags Mercer, Chief Executive Officer, gave an update on the Hope Hub which 
was a charitable organisation which worked to prevent and end Homelessness 
within Surrey Heath.  
  
The Hope Hub provided crisis and empowerment services for anyone who was 
or was at risk of becoming homeless, or whom was struggling with mental 
health, debt issues and unemployment. This included provision of emergency 
relief and items and one to one casework support, employment advice; and 
money and debt advice. 
  
Recently, the Hope Hub had reintroduced its living well programme, where it 
was envisaged that in the future one programme per weekday would be 
featured. Sessions included a 5 week affordable cookery course, shopping on a 
budget and understanding labelling. It was recognised that many clients had 
enjoyed sharing experiences and socialising during such sessions which had 
been missed during the height of the pandemic. 
  
The Hope Hub’s digital inclusion project called IT Connect allowed clients to 
borrow a tablet for up to three months. The programme also worked to train and 
upskill clients; and this ran alongside a programme provided by a training and 
employment coach. In addition a number of clients had completed a certificated 
volunteering programme. Overall a total of 183 individuals had attended the 
Hope Hub’s training courses; some of whom left with accredited qualifications.  
  
Moving forward the charity was developing a service user forum, which would 
be made up of individuals which reflected the Hope Hub’s client base. In 
addition, as many of the volunteers which had lent their time during the 
pandemic had moved on to other opportunities, the Hope Hub was seeking to 
engage new volunteers and had benefited from the expertise of the Frimley 
Park Hospital Volunteer Coordinator.  
  
On looking forward and on evaluation of the recent changes to the demand for 
the Hope Hub’s services, statistics showed that Hope Hub Clients now suffered 
with more complex needs and were often multiple disadvantaged. This resulted 
in the Hope Hub’s average client engaging with the service on 31 occasions. In 
relation to this the Hope Hub aimed to provide a wider range of services, which 
included social enterprise initiatives, and had longer term ambitions of a ‘Hope 
House’, and skills centre.  
  

Page 6



Minutes\External Partnerships Select Committee\1 March 2022

The Hope Hub’s Emergency Accommodation Service, provided in conjunction 
with the Council, was due to officially open on 22 March 2022. However, the 
service was already providing 3 rooms with a further 3 rooms slowed down by 
defect and building material supply issues. The accommodation’s residents 
would live at the house for 6 weeks in which they would work intensely with the 
day service offering. At the end of the period the client would move into private 
rental or social housing.  
  
Arising from Members’ questions and comments the following points were 
noted: 
  

          Where a homeless person was entrenched in rough sleeping, the Hope 
Hub would provide them with the necessities, but would not support them 
in order to enable them to continue sleeping rough on a permanent 
basis. In such instances, the day service would help them obtain 
identification in order to give them access to temporary accommodation 
and would often add them to the 2 year SAN programme, where the 
Hope Hub would report on the individual’s progress to Surrey Heath and 
Surrey County Councils. 

          All of the Hope Hub’s Emergency Accommodation’s residents signed a 
declaration stating that they would not engage in substance misuse 
whilst at the house.  

          There was potential for The Hope Hub to work in conjunction with the 
Man with a Pan initiative.  

          Following the completion of a risk assessment, coordination between the 
Council’s Housing team and The Hope Hub could allow for a rough-
sleeping individual to be placed within the emergency accommodation 
within the same day.  

          There was a lack of emergency accommodation within easy reach of 
Camberley. This problem was exacerbated by the lack of a clear 
emergency accommodation referral process for out of office hours. It was 
felt that there was an opportunity to hold easily-assessed emergency 
rough sleeping kits, which would include a sleeping bag, clothing and 
essential toiletries, at St Michaels, St Martins and St Marys Churches.  

  
The Committee thanked Mags for her informative update and continued fantastic 
work in the borough.  
  
   

23/EP  Camberley Street Angels 
 
The Committee received a verbal update from Reverend Mike Thomason and 
Richard Salt, Street Angels Coordinator, in respect of Camberley Street Angels.  
  
Camberley Street Angels was a Churches Together initiative and a group of 
volunteers who believed that people deserved care and love at their time of need.  
  
The Street Angels provided emergency welfare support in Camberley Town 
Centre, when the nightime economy was most active. The Street Angels currently 
provided support on two Fridays a month, including the monthly payday, and 

Page 7



Minutes\External Partnerships Select Committee\1 March 2022

worked alongside the Police and doorstaff. The initiative was reemerging, post 
lockdown, and currently had 13 volunteers.  
  
Following Members’ comments it was clarified that in order to volunteer as part of 
Camberley Street Angels individuals did not need to be a member of the church, 
but instead just needed to share the church’s ethos and values. Members also felt 
that there was an opportunity to promote the Street Angels in Heathscene in order 
to help with the recruitment of volunteers and it was noted that various Members 
had volunteered with Camberley Street Angels and had found the experience 
enlightening.  
  
Members thanked Mike and Richard for the update. 
  
   

24/EP  Committee Work Programme 
 
The Committee considered its Committee Work Programme for the 22/23 
municipal year. It was noted that the work programme had a level of flexibility in 
order to encourage attendance from the Surrey Police and Crime Commissioner at 
the same meeting as the Borough Commander. Furthermore the Committee 
expressed its wish for Accent representatives to attend future meetings in-person, 
rather than virtually. In addition, it was asked by the Committee to have an update 
as to the status of the Surrey Heath Arts Council.  
  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 Chairman 

Page 8



  

Surrey Heath Borough Council 
External Partnership Select Committee 

7th June 2022 

 

Presentation from Gemma Taylor – Surrey Police 
 
 

 
Portfolio Holder:      Cllr Sarah- Jane Croke   
Strategic Director/Head of Service  Nick Steevens/Louise Livingston  
Report Author:   Jayne Boitoult – Comm Partnership Officer 

Wards Affected:    All  
 

 

 

 

Summary and purpose 
  

1. Surrey Police is represented by the local Borough Commander, Inspector Gemma 

Taylor who will give an update on Surrey Police’s role and general changes in trends 

relating to crime statistics and Policing priorities in Surrey Heath.   

 

Background and Supporting Information 

 

2. Surrey Police are one of the statutory members of the Surrey Heath Community 
Safety Partnership was introduced following the Crime and Disorder Act 1998, where 
agencies in England and Wales have a Statutory duty to form a Community Safety 

Partnership (CSP) to tackle key Community safety issues.  
 

 

3. In Surrey Heath we opted for a Local Strategic Partnership, which incorporates the 
responsibilities of a CSP which is required to review the levels and patterns of crime 
and disorder in the area and develops and implements strategies to tackle local 
problems.  The Surrey Heath Partnership meets four to five times a year and is 
chaired by the Council Leader, Cllr Alan McClafferty. The annual plan is attached as 
a background item. 

 
Recommendation  

4. The Committee is asked to consider the presentation in relation to Surrey Heath, and 

any future steps which Members would wish to recommend to the Executive and/or 

Council. 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6 



  

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 10



 

 

 
 Surrey Heath Partnership Plan on a Page 2022-23  

Safeguarding and 
Health 

Business Crime 
Shared Policies and 

Procedures 

Working with all partners on targeted interventions to make Surrey Heath a safer place to live and work 

Working with all statutory partners, business and the voluntary sector to ensure a joined up approach 

Contributing to the local Economy and Wellbeing of the local population 

• To review the options and 
agree how best we can  
support the DHR advisory for 
the period from September 
2021 - 2024.  

• Promote the White Ribbon 
DA campaign, Nov 22. 

• For the SHP to work 
collaboratively with others 
and to utilise new social 
media channels such as 
Instagram to communication  
messages  

 

• To annually review the 
membership and TOR to 
ensure they reflect the 
priorities and needs of the 
community.   

• For all to share good 
practice and relevant 
policies. 

• To agree how best to 
encourage young person 
representation , and 
implement during the year 
to ensure their voice is 
captured.  

• Ensure effective information 
sharing and joint problem 
solving to increase the safety 
and well-being of SH 
communities through the 
CHaRMM , SOC-JAG etc. by  
embedding  ECINS. 

• For members to actively 
promote and support Anti-
social behaviour awareness 
week in July 2022.  

•  

 

• Increase awareness of 
Serious Organised Crime (i.e. 
modern day slavery, drug 
trafficking, fraud, child 
exploitation, c/terrorism)by 
delivery of a training course 
to members during 21/22. 

• Delivery of Anti-Social 
Behaviour – Community 
Trigger and Community 
Protection workshop to build 
awareness. 

• To promote SCAM awareness 
twice during  the year  

 

R
e

d
u

ci
n

g 
in

e
q

u
al

it
y,

 s
ti

gm
a 

an
d

 d
is

cr
im

in
at

io
n

 

P
age 11

https://www.whiteribbon.org.uk/
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/248645/Serious_and_Organised_Crime_Strategy.pdf


T
his page is intentionally left blank



  

Surrey Heath Borough Council 
External Partnership Select Committee 

7th June 2022 

 

To receive a verbal update from Councillor Valerie White 
OPCC – Crime Panel Member  

 
 

 
Portfolio Holder:      Cllr Sarah- Jane Croke   
Strategic Director/Head of Service  Nick Steevens/Louise Livingston  
Report Author:   Jayne Boitoult – Comm Partnership Officer 

Wards Affected:    All  
 

 

 

Summary and purpose 

1. Lisa Townsend was elected as the Surrey Police and Crime Commissioner in May 
2021, where a priority has been given to represent the views of those who live and 
work in Surrey and how the county is policed. Councillor Valerie White is to provide a 
verbal update as the Surrey Heath representative of the Crime Panel. 

Local Plans and Priorities 

2.   See attached Surrey Police and Crime Plan. 

 
Recommendation  

3. The Committee is asked to consider the presentation in relation to Surrey Heath, and 

any future steps which Members would wish to recommend to the Executive and/or 

Council. 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 13

Agenda Item 7 



This page is intentionally left blank



Police and Crime Plan 
for Surrey

2021-2025

Page 15



Police and Crime Commissioners are elected every four years to oversee policing, victim 
services and community safety for each police force area in England and Wales.  Lisa Townsend 
was elected as Police and Crime Commissioner for Surrey in May 2021.  Lisa is responsible for 
overseeing the work of Surrey Police, holding the Chief Constable to account, helping to tackle 
the crime issues that matter to people in Surrey and commissioning services to support victims 
of crime. She is also required to set out a Police and Crime Plan for the county. 

Page 16



3

Police and Crime Plan for Surrey 2021-25 

Foreword from the Police and Crime Commissioner 4

Foreword from the Chief Constable  6

Police and Crime Plan priorities              7

 Reducing violence against women and girls in Surrey      8
 Protecting people from harm in Surrey 10
 Working with Surrey communities so that they feel safe 14
 Strengthening the relationship between Surrey Police  

and Surrey residents      17
 Ensuring safer Surrey roads                                                 20 

About Surrey and Surrey Police                                                         23

Roles and responsibilities                                                       24

Ensuring Surrey Police have the right resources                                       25
  
Grant giving and commissioning                                               27

Measurement of progress against the Police and Crime Plan 28

Arrangements for holding the Chief Constable to account 28

Working with partners             29

Collaboration                                                                                29

Equality and diversity                                                                            30

Strategic Policing Requirement and national priorities 30

Consulting, reporting and review 30

Contributors 31

Contents 

Page 17



4

Police and Crime Plan for Surrey 2021-25 

When I was elected as Police and Crime Commissioner 
in May, I pledged to keep residents’ views at the heart 
of my plans for the future. One of the most important 
roles I have is to represent the views of those who 
live and work in Surrey in how our county is policed 
and I want to make sure the public’s priorities are my 
priorities. So I am delighted to present my Police and 
Crime Plan which set out the key areas I believe Surrey 
Police need to focus on during my term of office.

There are a number of issues our communities have 
told me are important to them such as tackling anti-
social behaviour in their local area, improving police 
visibility, making the county’s roads safer and preventing 
violence against women and girls. This Plan has been 
designed to reflect those priorities and will provide the 
basis on which I hold the Chief Constable to account 
for delivering a policing service our communities expect 
and deserve.

A great deal of work has gone into developing this Plan and I wanted to ensure it reflects as wide a range of views 
as possible on those issues that are important to people in Surrey. With the help of my Deputy Commissioner, Ellie 
Vesey-Thompson, we undertook the widest consultation process ever carried out by the Commissioner’s office. 
This included a county-wide survey of Surrey residents and direct conversations with key groups such as MPs, 
councillors, victim and survivor groups, young people, professionals in crime reduction and safety, rural crime groups 
and those representing Surrey’s diverse communities. 

What we heard was lots of praise for the Surrey Police officers, staff and volunteers across the county, but also a 
desire to see a more visible police presence in our communities, tackling those crimes and issues that are important 
to people where they live.

Our police teams of course cannot be everywhere and much of the crime they have to deal with, such as domestic 
abuse and fraud, happens out of sight – in people’s homes and on-line. We know that a visible police presence 
can provide reassurance to residents, but we need to make sure that this is directed to the right places and has a 
purpose. 

I am in no doubt that these are challenging times. In the last 18 months policing has been under great pressure as 
it adapted to delivering services and maintaining resources during the Covid-19 pandemic. More recently there has 
been intense public scrutiny following the shocking death of Sarah Everard at the hands of a serving police officer. 
This has sparked far-reaching debate about the continued epidemic of violence that women and girls experience 
and the police service has much work to do to combat this problem, tackle the root causes of offending and restore 
confidence in policing.  

I have heard from you how important it is that those who offend, who target our vulnerable people or threaten our 
communities need to be brought to justice. I have also heard how important it is to you to feel connected to Surrey 
Police and to be able to get help when you need it. 

Foreword from the Police and Crime 
Commissioner

Page 18



5

Police and Crime Plan for Surrey 2021-25 

Balancing these demands is the challenge our police leaders face. We are receiving more funding for police officers 
from the Government, but it will take time for these officers to be recruited and trained. Having spent a considerable 
amount of time out and about with our policing teams since I was elected, I have seen first-hand the hard work and 
dedication they put in every day to keep our county safe. They deserve the continued thanks of us all for their ongoing 
commitment.

Surrey is a fantastic place to live and work and I am committed to using this Plan and working with the Chief 
Constable to ensure we have a policing service in which this county can continue to be proud.
 
 

Lisa Townsend, 
Police and Crime Commissioner for Surrey

Page 19



6

Police and Crime Plan for Surrey 2021-25 

Foreword from the Chief Constable

I am pleased to endorse this Police and Crime 
Plan, which is based on extensive consultation with 
our communities in Surrey. Throughout my public 
service I have always believed that policing should 
work tirelessly to keep people safe and feeling safe 
too. Both are important to our community cohesion, 
quality of life, wellbeing and economic prosperity.

When I was appointed as Chief Constable, I made 
three sets of commitments. Firstly, to guide how we 
respond to, and care for, the thousands of people that 
contact us each day for help. Central to this is our 
work to prevent crime, protect our communities and 
pursue offenders. The priorities set out in this Plan will 
help us in our strong ambition for Surrey to remain one 
of the very safest counties for residents, businesses 
and visitors. 

I believe that what Surrey Police feels like to work for, 
directly affects the quality of service provided by our 
officers, staff and volunteers. This is why my second set of commitments was to our people, who have coped 
with the most extraordinary demands during the pandemic. We want nothing less than the highest standards 
of professional behaviour, as we take great pride in our service to you. Surrey Police is a kind, welcoming and 
inclusive organisation, that seeks to learn from the experiences and perspectives of others. We also work hard 
to respect and reflect the differences in the communities we serve. Like you, we have been shocked, angered 
and saddened by recent events that have undermined confidence in policing. Without your confidence our work 
to keep our county safe and feeling safe, is so much more difficult. This Plan helps us to focus on the issues that 
matter most to you.

Finally, I have committed that Surrey Police will be an organisation that puts prevention at the heart of what we 
do, listening carefully to your concerns so that we spot problems early, acting quickly and avoiding quick fixes 
that don’t last. We commit to using the full potential of our diverse workforce, investment in technology and strong 
partnerships to work closely with you in delivering this Plan.

Gavin Stephens, 
Chief Constable for Surrey Police

Page 20



7

Police and Crime Plan for Surrey 2021-25 

Police and Crime Plan priorities 

The priorities in this Police and Crime Plan reflect those areas that residents and the key groups we spoke to felt 
were important to them. I also considered current crime trends and professional analysis from the police on where 
resources are needed to keep Surrey safe. 

Preventing violence against women 
and girls in Surrey

Protecting people from harm in Surrey

Working with Surrey communities 
so that they feel safe 

Strengthening relationships between  
Surrey Police and Surrey residents

Ensuring safer Surrey roads

More information on how each of these priorities will be achieved is given in the next pages.

The priorities set out in this Plan are:

Page 21



8

Police and Crime Plan for Surrey 2021-25 

Preventing violence against women and 
girls in Surrey

To support women and girls who are victims of violence:

Surrey Police will… My office will…

  Fully implement and deliver against the Surrey 
Police Violence Against Women and Girls Strategy 
2021-2024, including high quality support to victims 
and improved understanding of violence and abuse  

  Commission specialist services that are accessible 
to women from diverse backgrounds and are 
informed by the voices of victims

  Provide reassurance and build public confidence 
in the police to investigate violence against women 
and girls and empower all officers and staff to flag 
inappropriate behaviour amongst colleagues

  Identify lessons and actions needed from domestic 
death reviews, safeguarding adult and safeguarding 
children reviews and work with partners to ensure 
families feel seen and heard

  Intervene with stalking and domestic abuse 
perpetrators at early stages to address behaviour 
and prevent abuse by using protection orders 

  Play an active role in all key strategic partnership 
boards and groups focussed on tackling violence 
against women and girls

Together we will…

  Commission services informed by the risks around abuse that cause women to become involved in the 
criminal justice system

Women and girls should be able to live free from fear of violence, but sadly that fear is often grown 
from a young age. Whether it is experiencing harassment in the street through to other forms 
of gender-based abuse, being the victim of such behaviour has become ‘normalised’ as part of 
daily life. I want women and girls in Surrey to be safe and feel safe in public and private spaces. 
Combatting the scourge of Violence Against Women and Girls needs widespread societal 
change to address misogyny and gender inequality. Everyone has a role to play in addressing 
unacceptable behaviour in others. Violence Against Women and Girls encompasses a wide 
range of gender-based crimes including domestic abuse, sexual offences, stalking, harassment, 
human trafficking and ‘Honour’ Based Violence. We know these crimes disproportionally affect 
women and girls, with women four times more likely to experience a sexual assault than men. 

Page 22



9

Police and Crime Plan for Surrey 2021-25 

To bring offenders to justice:

Surrey Police will… My office will…

  Invest in investigation capability and skills to solve 
more cases, arrest offenders and to break the cycle 
of reoffending for perpetrators

  Work with partners in the criminal justice system 
to ensure that the current backlog of court cases is 
cleared, improve timeliness and support victims so 
that cases can be taken to court where appropriate

Together we will…

  Work with partners to promote happy and healthy relationships amongst children and young people that 
help them to recognise what’s acceptable and what’s not

I make no apologies for setting a priority on reducing violence against women and girls in my Police and Crime Plan, 
but this does not mean that we don’t recognise that men and boys can be victims of violence and sexual offences 
too.  All victims of crime should have access to proper support.  A successful approach to tackling violence against 
women and girls and keeping everyone safe is to recognise that whilst some offences can be committed by females, 
the vast majority of abuse and violence is perpetrated by men and my office will continue to work closely with Surrey 
Police and partners to deliver a co-ordinated community response.

Page 23



10

Police and Crime Plan for Surrey 2021-25 

Protecting people from harm in Surrey

As Police and Crime Commissioner, I recognise that vulnerability comes in many forms and 
my office will be unwavering in its commitment to ensure all of our communities are protected 
from harm and victimisation, both online and offline. This may be abuse against children, older 
people or minority groups, hate crime or harm to those who are vulnerable to exploitation.

To support victims vulnerable to harm:

Surrey Police will… My office will…

  Meet the requirements of the new Victims’ Code   Ensure the voices of victims are both heard and 
acted upon, that they are central to my office’s 
approach to commissioning and shared formally 
with the wider criminal justice system

  Ensure that victims of all crimes receive the highest 
possible quality of care through the Surrey Police 
Victim and Witness Care Unit

  Seek out additional sources of funding to support 
delivery of local victim services

Together we will…

  Use feedback from victims, though surveys and feedback sessions, to understand their experience and 
improve the police response and wider criminal justice process  

  Build confidence in those that have previously suffered in silence to seek support

  Work in partnership to protect people from harm by ensuring representation on key statutory boards in 
Surrey, maintaining constructive relationships and sharing good practice and learning

Page 24



11

Police and Crime Plan for Surrey 2021-25 

Children and young people can be particularly vulnerable to being targeted by criminals and organised gangs. I have 
appointed a Deputy Police and Crime Commissioner who will take a lead on working with police and partners to 
support children and young people. 

To support young victims vulnerable to harm:

Surrey Police will… My office will…

  Be guided by the National Child Centred Policing 
Strategy to improve the quality of policing for 
children and young people by acknowledging their 
differences, recognising their vulnerabilities and 
meeting their needs

  Work alongside children and young people at every 
opportunity and help with education on the dangers 
of drugs, child sexual exploitation, online grooming 
and County Lines criminality

  Work with education partners to make schools 
safe spaces and help inform children and young 
people around exploitation, drugs and County Lines 
criminality

  Advocate for more funding to tackle the threat and 
risks that face our children and young people. I 
will call for more immediate resources to increase 
our preventative work and safeguard children and 
young people 

  Explore new approaches to tackling offenders who 
exploit our children

  Ensure Surrey has appropriate services in place 
to help young victims cope and recover from their 
experiences

Together we will…

  Work with partners to explore the impact of technology, supporting and developing preventative  
initiatives for communities, parents and the children and young people themselves

To reduce violence and knife crime:

Surrey Police will… My office will…

  Carry out operations aimed at reducing knife crime 
and educating communities about the dangers of 
carrying knives

  Commission support services to intervene and 
reduce violence and knife crime such as the Child 
Criminal Exploitation Targeted Support service and 
the Early Help Project

Together we will…

  Work with and support the serious youth violence partnership. Poverty, school exclusions and having 
multiple disadvantages are some of the driving factors and we are committed to working with the 

partnership to find solutions to these big issues

Page 25



12

Police and Crime Plan for Surrey 2021-25 

To support people with mental health needs:

Surrey Police will… My office will…

  Engage and work with all relevant partners 
to ensure police resources are being used 
appropriately for children and adults experiencing a 
mental health crisis

  Take forward at a national level the issue of mental 
health provision for those in crisis and monitor the 
impact of government reforms of the Mental Health 
Act

  Use the Surrey High Intensity Partnership 
Programme and trauma-informed services to 
support those who need regular support 

  Work with partners to maximise the use of 
government funding awarded by the Changing 
Futures programme to improve local services for 
people experiencing multiple disadvantage and 
evaluate the outcomes for those involved in the 
criminal justice system

Together we will…

  Continue to support a multi-agency approach to enable an appropriate response for people with a 
combination of mental health, substance misuse, domestic abuse and homelessness issues who are 

coming into regular contact with the criminal justice system

To reduce fraud and cybercrime and support victims:

Surrey Police will… My office will…

  Support the most vulnerable victims of fraud and 
cyber crime  

  Ensure that services are in place to protect 
vulnerable and older people, linking in with national 
and local partners

Together we will…

  Support cyber-crime prevention activity being included in day-to-day policing, local government  
and local business practices 

  Work with partners to develop a common understanding among local partners of the threats,  
vulnerabilities and risks relating to fraud and cybercrime

To reduce reoffending:

Surrey Police will… My office will…

  Support the use of restorative justice in Surrey 
and ensure that victims are informed about and 
offered restorative justice services as laid out in the 
Victims’ Code

  Continue to support restorative justice through 
the reducing reoffending fund which delivers a 
broad range of projects, many of which are aimed 
at offenders experiencing multiple disadvantage, 
with the intention of diverting them away from the 
revolving door of offending behaviour

  Implement the national Integrated Offender 
Management Strategy aimed at cutting 
neighbourhood crime, including burglary and 
robbery

  Continue to support the High Harm Perpetrator 
Unit through the commissioning of services which 
to date have included housing schemes and a 
substance misuse service

Together we will…

  Work with services that support children and young people to reduce reoffending
Page 26



13

Police and Crime Plan for Surrey 2021-25 

Modern Slavery is the exploitation of people who have been forced, deceived or coerced into a life of labour and 
servitude. It is a crime hidden often from society where victims are subjected to abuse, inhumane and degrading 
treatment. Examples of enslavement include a person who is forced to work, is controlled by an employer, is bought 
or sold as ‘property’ or has restrictions placed on their movements. It happens across the UK, including in Surrey, 
in situations such as car washes, nail bars, servitude and sex workers. Some, but not all, victims will also have been 
trafficked into the country. 

To tackle Modern Slavery:

Surrey Police will… My office will…

  Work with law enforcement agencies, local 
authorities, non-governmental organisations and 
charities to co-ordinate the local response to 
modern slavery through the Surrey Anti-Slavery 
Partnership, particularly looking at ways to raise 
awareness and protect victims

  Support victims through our work with Justice 
and Care and the newly appointed Barnardo’s 
Independent Child Trafficking Guardians

Together we will…

  Work with the National Anti-Trafficking and Modern Slavery Network

Page 27



14

Police and Crime Plan for Surrey 2021-25 

Working with Surrey communities so that 
they feel safe

I am committed to ensuring all residents feel safe in their local communities. Through my 
consultation it was clear many people feel their communities are impacted by crime in their 
local area such as anti-social behaviour, drug related harm or environmental crime.

To reduce anti-social behaviour:

Surrey Police will… My office will…

  Work with Surrey communities to develop a 
problem-solving approach and interventions that 
work, putting the community at the heart of the 
response

  Ensure victims and the community have easy 
access to the Community Trigger process

  Improve the police response for victims of anti-
social behaviour, ensuring Surrey Police and 
partners use the powers available to them, seek 
innovative ways to problem solve and work with 
communities to find lasting solutions

  Support the specialist service in place in Surrey to 
support victims of anti-social behaviour

  Support the Force’s Problem-Solving Team in 
developing initiatives that target an area or crime 
type and using Designing Out Crime Officers to find 
solutions to anti-social behaviour

  Identify opportunities to bring additional funding 
to communities though projects such as the Safer 
Streets initiative

Page 28



15

Police and Crime Plan for Surrey 2021-25 

To reduce drug related harm:

Surrey Police will… My office will…

  Reduce the community harm caused by drugs, 
including crime committed to fuel drug dependence

  Continue to commission the Cuckooing Service 
which supports those who have been exploited by 
criminal gangs

  Tackle organised criminality, violence and 
exploitation that go hand-in-hand with the 
production and supply of drugs

  Work with partners to develop and fund services 
that support those affected by substance misuse

Together we will…

  Work with partners including education providers to inform children and young people about the danger  
of drugs, the dangers of getting involved in county lines and how they can seek help

Rural communities in Surrey tell me how important it is to tackle issues that affect their areas. My Deputy Commissioner 
is taking a lead on rural crime issues and working with rural communities in Surrey and I am pleased that we now 
have dedicated rural crime teams in place. We will work with the Chief Constable to ensure the Force combat 
offences such as theft of machinery and wildlife crime. 

To tackle rural crime:

Surrey Police will… My office will…

  Support the Rural Crime Teams’ initiatives to 
address crimes such as livestock worrying, theft 
and poaching

  Ensure there is regular engagement with the 
rural community and feedback is provided to our 
community leaders

  Support the countywide protocol being developed 
by the Surrey Waste Partnership to provide a 
consistent and robust response to those who 
illegally dump waste on public or private land

  Reduce environmental anti-social behaviour, such 
as fly-tipping, through financially supporting Joint 
Enforcement Teams

Together we will…

  Improve understanding and awareness of the crimes that affect rural communities 

Page 29



16

Police and Crime Plan for Surrey 2021-25 

To reduce acquisitive crime:

Surrey Police will… My office will…

  Disrupt and arrest the criminal gangs that carry 
out acquisitive crimes such as burglary, shoplifting, 
vehicle (including bicycle) and catalytic converter 
thefts, particularly looking at their operational 
activity, community engagement and awareness 
raising

  Explore funding opportunities for initiatives to 
tackle acquisitive crime, such as the Home Office 
Safer Streets fund

  Work with partners, both at a strategic level 
through the Serious and Organised Crime 
Partnership and local tactical groups such as the 
Serious Organised Crime Joint Action Groups

  Support Neighbourhood Watch activity to promote 
prevention messages

Together we will…

  Work alongside partners during weeks of operation to share communications and encourage intelligence 
gathering from partners and the community

To tackle business crime:

Surrey Police will… My office will…

  Explore ways to increase reporting and intelligence, 
linking what we know with wider problem-solving 
techniques

  Work with the business community to understand 
their needs and to promote investment in crime 
prevention activity

Together we will…

  Ensure Surrey’s business and retail community feel listened to and have increased confidence in police

Page 30



17

Police and Crime Plan for Surrey 2021-25 

Strengthening relationships between 
Surrey Police and Surrey residents

My aim is for all residents to feel that their police force is visible in tackling the issues that 
matter to them and that they can engage with Surrey Police when they have a crime or anti-
social behaviour problem or need other police support. We must recognise that types of 
crime have changed considerably over the last decade or so, with a great deal of crime taking 
place in people’s homes and online. A visible presence on our streets provides reassurance 
to communities and that must continue. But we must balance this with the need for a police 
presence in places that aren’t always seen by the public, such as tackling online crimes and 
working to bring offenders to justice. 

To give communities a visible police presence:

Surrey Police will… My office will…

  Ensure police are aware of local issues and work 
with communities and partners to solve local 
problems

  Do our part to help promote the existing local 
policing teams so that Surrey communities know 
who they are and how to contact them

Together we will…

  Balance the desire from communities to see a physical policing presence,  
with the increasing demands from crimes committed in homes and online

  Direct increased resources funded by the Government uplift programme into the tackling  
the crime types which most affect Surrey’s communities 

Page 31



18

Police and Crime Plan for Surrey 2021-25 

To ensure residents can contact Surrey Police:

Surrey Police will… My office will…

  Ensure there are a range of ways to contact Surrey 
Police that suit individual needs

  Promote the different ways in which residents can 
contact police, including telephone and online 
reporting

  Ensure that people can get hold of the right person 
in Surrey Police and that their contact is responded 
to in a timely manner

  Hold the Chief Constable to account for 
performance in answering 999 and 101 calls

  Maintain a high performance for answering 999 
police emergency calls and improve the current 
waiting times for the 101 non-emergency service

Together we will…

  Ensure that when people have a complaint, they know who to contact, have their  
complaint investigated proportionately and receive a timely response

To ensure that children and young people in Surrey feel engaged in policing:

Surrey Police will… My office will…

  Work with schools, colleges and youth groups on 
crime and community-safety related issues and find 
joint solutions

  Engage with children and young people and 
listen to their concerns and ideas while promoting 
Surrey Police as an organisation that respects and 
responds to their needs

  Support a forum with schools, colleges and youth 
groups to share intelligence and receive updates on 
current threats, trends and data

  Support the work of the Youth Engagement Officers 
and the Surrey Volunteer Police Cadets

Page 32



19

Police and Crime Plan for Surrey 2021-25 

I want to make sure that all of Surrey’s diverse communities feel safe, whether those are geographical communities 
or communities with protected characteristics (age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, 
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation). 

To ensure that all communities in Surrey feel safe:

Surrey Police will… My office will…

  Ensure that the Surrey Police Equality and Diversity 
strategy is implemented, including an aim to better 
reflect Surrey’s communities in the workforce

  Meet with a wide and diverse range of community 
groups that represent residents across Surrey

Together we will…

  Ensure that the Commissioner’s and Surrey Police’s websites and other communications  
are accessible to Surrey’s communities

  Work with communities, including the travelling community, to find solutions to unauthorised 
encampments, including working with partners to develop a transit site in Surrey

Engagement between Surrey residents and police can be strengthened through community volunteering. My office 
runs the Independent Custody Visiting Scheme in which members of the community go into police custody to check 
on the welfare of detainees. There are also volunteering opportunities in Surrey Police, such as Special Constables 
and Police Support Volunteers.

To support volunteering:

Surrey Police will… My office will…

  Promote and recruit to police volunteering 
opportunities

  Continue to operate an effective Independent 
Custody Visiting Scheme, supporting the volunteers 
and working with the Chief Constable on any issues 
identified

  Continue to support Special Constables and other 
volunteers across Surrey Police and recognise the 
role they play in keeping our communities safe

To ensure that there is feedback to residents on policing:

Surrey Police will… My office will…

  Improve feedback to individuals who have reported 
crime or concerns 

  Hold engagement meetings, surgeries and events 
with partners and residents 

  Improve feedback to local communities on crime 
trends, crime prevention advice and on success 
stories in reducing crime and catching offenders

  With Surrey Police, use online methods such as 
Facebook to broaden engagement

Page 33



20

Police and Crime Plan for Surrey 2021-25 

Ensuring safer Surrey roads

Surrey is home to some of the busiest stretches of motorway in the UK with significant numbers 
of vehicles using the county’s road network every day. Our roads carry over 60% more than the 
national average amount of traffic. High profile cycle events in recent years, coupled with the 
beauty of the countryside, have made the Surrey Hills a destination point for cyclists and walkers 
as well as off-road vehicles, motorcycles and horse riders. Our roads, footpaths and bridleways 
are vibrant and open Surrey up to economic prosperity as well as leisure opportunities. However, 
concerns raised by communities highlight that many people misuse our roads in Surrey and 
cause distress to those living and working here.

To reduce serious road collisions:

Surrey Police will… My office will…

  Support Surrey Police’s Road’s Policing Unit and 
the development of the Fatal Five Team. This team 
is focused on changing driver behaviour via a multi-
agency preventative approach to tackle the fatal 
five causes of accidents on our roads: speeding, 
drink and drug driving, using a mobile phone, not 
wearing a seatbelt and careless driving, including 
enforcement

  Work with Surrey County Council, Surrey Fire and 
Rescue Service, the Highways Agency and others 
to create a partnership plan that reflects the needs 
of all our road users and shifts the focus to harm 
reduction

Together we will…

  Working with the Safer Surrey Roads Partnership to develop initiatives that reduce the number of killed  
and seriously injured on our roads. This includes Vision Zero, Rural Speeds project and the development  

of the Safety Camera Partnership

Page 34



21

Police and Crime Plan for Surrey 2021-25 

To reduce anti-social road use:

Surrey Police will… My office will…

  Improve the ease with which residents can 
report anti-social road use such as cycling on 
footpaths, using E-Scooters in prohibited places, 
causing distress to horse riders and some parking 
obstructions so that trends and hot spots can be 
identified

  Involve communities in the solution to anti-social 
driving by supporting Community Speed Watch 
groups by purchasing more equipment and 
listening to their concerns

To make Surrey’s roads safer for children and young people:

Surrey Police will… My office will…

  Address the disproportionately higher number of fatalities in those aged 17 to 24 by continuing to support 
and develop interventions such as Safe Drive Stay Alive and making young driver courses more accessible

  Work with schools and colleges to support initiatives such as Bike Safe and the new Surrey Safer Roads 
Plan, to ensure children and their families feel confident to walk or cycle to school and in their communities

To support victims of road collisions:

Surrey Police will… My office will…

  Work with criminal justice partners to ensure justice 
is achieved for victims of dangerous driving

  Explore the support given to victims and witnesses 
of road collisions and work with existing support 
organisations 

Page 35



22

Police and Crime Plan for Surrey 2021-25 

Page 36



23

Police and Crime Plan for Surrey 2021-25 

About Surrey and Surrey Police
Surrey is an area of varied geography, with a mix of 
busy towns and rural villages and a population of 1.2m 
residents. 

Surrey Police allocate their officer and staff resources at 
a number of different levels. Its neighbourhood teams 
operate at a borough and district level, working locally 
with communities. These connect communities into 
more specialist policing services, such as response 
policing and investigative teams, which often work at 
a divisional level. Surrey-wide teams such as major 
crime investigation, firearms, roads policing and police 
dogs, work across the county and in many cases, in 
collaborated teams with Sussex Police. 
 
Surrey Police has a workforce establishment of 2,105 warranted police officers and 1,978 police staff. Many of 
our police staff are in operational roles such as specialist investigators, Police Community Support Officers, crime 
analysts, forensics and contact centre staff taking 999 and 101 calls. With funding from the Government’s police 
uplift programme, Surrey Police is currently increasing its number of police officers and is working on improving 
representation of the workforce to reflect the diversity of Surrey’s communities. 

384  
999 calls

795   
calls to the 101 
non-emergency 

number

An average day for Surrey Police:

1,124 
digital contacts

Incidents
including but not limited to:

7 missing 
persons

4 child 
protection 
incidents

69 cases 
of antisocial 
behaviour

42 incidents 
relating to 
mental health

7 burglaries

46 repeat 
victims

91 
emergencies

29
arrests

121 
crimes  

allocated for 
investigation

127 
priority 

responses

Page 37



24

Police and Crime Plan for Surrey 2021-25 

The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act (2011) established the role of the Police & Crime Commissioner to 
be a visible and accountable bridge between the Police and the public. The Chief Constable retains responsibility for 
delivering operational policing, whilst the Commissioner holds him to account for doing so. The Commissioner is held 
to account by the public and the Police and Crime Panel scrutinises the decisions of the Commissioner. 

The Police and Crime Commissioner:  

• Sets the strategic direction for policing in Surrey through the publication of the Police and Crime Plan
• Sets the budget and precept for policing in Surrey
• Holds the Chief Constable to account for delivery of the Police and Crime Plan and for efficient 

and effective policing 
• Appoints and, if necessary, dismisses the Chief Constable
• Commissions services to help victims cope and recover, services to divert people away from 

crime and to prevent crime and to rehabilitate perpetrators  
• Works with partners to reduce crime and improve community safety in Surrey

The Chief Constable: 

• Delivers an efficient and effective policing service which meets the needs of Surrey residents
• Manages the resources and expenditure of the police force
• Is operationally independent of the Police and Crime Commissioner 

The Police and Crime Panel: 

• Scrutinises the key decisions of the Police and Crime Commissioner
• Reviews and makes recommendations on the Police and Crime Plan
• Reviews and makes recommendations on the proposed policing precept (council tax)
• Holds confirmation hearings for the appointment of the Chief Constable and key staff supporting 

the Commissioner
• Deals with complaints against the Commissioner

Roles and responsibilities

Page 38



25

Police and Crime Plan for Surrey 2021-25 

As Police and Crime Commissioner, I receive all funding relating to policing in Surrey, via government grants and through 
the local council tax precept. We are facing a challenging financial environment ahead with the impact of the Covid-19 
pandemic and the prospect of higher inflation and energy costs on the horizon. It is my role to set a revenue and capital 
budget for Surrey Police and determine the level of council tax raised to fund policing. For 2021/22, a gross revenue 
budget of £261.70m has been set for both my office and services and Surrey Police. Only 46% of this is funded by 
Central Government as Surrey has one of the lowest levels of grant funding per head in the country. The remining 54% 
is funded by local residents through their council tax, which currently stands at £285.57 a year for a Band D property.
 
Staffing costs represent over 86% of the total budget with premises, equipment and transport making up a good part of 
the remainder. For 2021/22 my office had a total gross budget of almost £4.2m of which £3.1m is used to commission 
services to support victims and witnesses and promote community safety. My staff have also been particularly 
successful in securing additional funds during the year for initiatives such as Safer Streets and will continue to pursue 
these opportunities as they arise. Of the £1.1m remaining, £150k is required for audit services, leaving £950k to fund 
staffing, my own costs and the costs of running my office.

I am currently working with the Chief Constable to consider funding for next year and future years of this Plan and will 
be consulting with residents later in the year. I am also robustly scrutinising Surrey Police’s plans for making savings and 
ensuring they operate efficiently. I will also campaign nationally for the Force to get its fair share of government grants 
and for a review of the current funding formula.

Surrey Police should have the people, estates, technology and skills it requires to police the county in the most effective 
and efficient way possible. Our residents are in the unenviable position of paying the highest proportion of local policing 
costs in the country. I therefore want to use this money wisely and efficiently and ensure we give them the very best 
value from their local police service. We will do this by having the right staff in place, securing fair funding for Surrey 
Police, planning for future demands and ensuring we operate as efficiently as possible.

Ensuring Surrey Police have the right  
resources 

Page 39



26

Police and Crime Plan for Surrey 2021-25 

Staffing 

I will support the Chief Constable to makes sure that we can: 

• Attract the very best people into policing, with the right skills and from a diverse range of 
backgrounds that represent the communities we police

• Ensure our officers and staff have the skills, training and experience they need in order to flourish 
and provide and the right equipment to do their jobs effectively, efficiently and professionally

• Ensure that our increased officer resources are used to the best effect – aligned to policing 
demand and to those areas of priority that are identified in this Plan

Resources for Surrey 

I will aim to get fair funding for Surrey Police by:

• Ensuring Surrey’s voice is heard at the highest levels in government. I will seek to work with 
Ministers to address the inequalities in the funding formula that results in Surrey receiving 
amongst the lowest level of government funding per head in the country

• Continuing to pursue grants to enable investment in crime prevention and support for victims 
which are vital to making residents feel safer  

Planning for the future

I will work with the Chief Constable to address future policing needs by: 

• Delivering new estate facilities that are fit for the future, reduce our carbon footprint and meet the 
Force’s needs but also are deliverable and affordable

• Ensuring that Surrey Police exploits the best of technology to enable it to improve its services, be 
a modern police service and to deliver efficiencies

• Meeting the commitment to being carbon neutral by effective planning, managing the police fleet 
and working with our suppliers

  
Police efficiency

I will work with the Chief Constable to improve efficiency within Surrey Police by: 

• Making better use of technology to ensure that more money can be allocated to the operational 
policing that residents want 

• Building on the existing arrangements already in place within Surrey Police where collaboration 
with other forces can deliver a clear operational or financial benefit

Efficiency in the Criminal Justice System 

I will work with the Chief Constable to improve efficiency in the criminal justice system by:  

• Ensuring that the evidence submitted to the courts by Surrey Police is both timely and of high quality
• Working with the criminal justice system to address the backlogs and delays that were intensified 

by the Covid-19 pandemic, bringing additional stress and trauma to those who are all too often at 
their most vulnerable

• Working with partners to influence an efficient and effective justice system that works for victims 
and does more to tackle the root causes of offending

Page 40



27

Police and Crime Plan for Surrey 2021-25 

Grant giving and commissioning 
As Police and Crime Commissioner, in addition to core police funding, I receive funding to commission services 
which support victims of crime to help them cope and recover as well as funding to reduce reoffending and divert 
and support those at risk of offending or being exploited. 

One of the key services I fund is the Surrey Police Victim and Witness Care Unit (VWCU). I am proud of the collaboration 
between my office and the Force to establish this dedicated team, which provides a service to all victims of crime 
from the point of reporting, through the criminal justice process and beyond. The unit is also able to support victims of 
crime who self-refer for support. I will continue to oversee its development, ensuring that victims of all crimes receive 
the highest quality of care possible and that Surrey Police are compliant with the requirements of the Victims’ Code.

I also set aside some of the policing budget to provide funding for projects which improve community safety in Surrey. 
I am reviewing this funding programme but have set out some key principles. I will: 

• Commission a broad spectrum of specialist, good quality and easily accessible services, which 
prevent crime and protect people of all ages against harm 

• Listen to people’s diverse and specific needs, which underpin all the commissioning activity of 
my office

• Commission specialist support to help victims of crime cope and recover 
• Invest in preventing future crimes and addressing community safety issues, such as anti-social 

behaviour 
• Untertake specialist work with offenders, working with them to address the root causes of their 

behaviour
• Support projects within our communities and Surrey Police which help improve and promote 

engagement between the police and residents 
• Commission services to protect our children and young people, working alongside them to give 

them the tools to keep safe and make informed choices about their life 
 

These services are a vital part of a collective effort to make Surrey a safer and better place to live. I will be working 
with partners to join up our efforts and co-commission services where possible to make the best use of resources 
and provide value for money for the Surrey public. 

Funding will be accessible to organisations of all sizes. I will value the way small and locally based charities and 
community organisations respond to people’s needs in a way that really matters to them. It’s vital we tackle inequalities 
we know the pandemic has exacerbated and research evidences these organisations’ distinctiveness in who they 
support, how they carry out their work and the role they play in their communities. 

At the time of publishing my Plan, my total commissioning budget from Government funding, successful grant bids 
and from my office budget is in excess of £4 million and I will ensure the highest level of transparency with regards 
to my office’s commissioning expenditure, allowing residents to fully understand how their money is being spent and 
the difference it is making.

Full details of funding levels and how it’s allocated can be found on my website: https://funding.surrey-pcc.gov.uk/

Page 41

https://funding.surrey-pcc.gov.uk/


28

Police and Crime Plan for Surrey 2021-25 

Measurement of progress against the Police and Crime Plan 

To measure the success of this Plan and the safety of people in Surrey, I will work with the Chief Constable to develop 
a scorecard of policing data which will include:  

• Measures of crime levels and police outcomes for areas such as violence, sexual offences, fraud, 
burglary and car crime

• Measures of anti-social behaviour 
• Levels of satisfaction and public confidence
• Support provided to victims of crime
• Road traffic collision data
• Resources and efficiency data

I will report on these measures in public meetings and on my website and I will also report on the progress against 
the Plan to the Surrey Police and Crime Panel. 

To further inform my oversight, I will look at the results of inspection reports from Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of 
Constabulary and Fire & Rescue Services (HMICFRS). These provide a more professional assessment of the work 
of Surrey Police to put data and trends into context. I will also ask partners for their feedback on how the Plan is 
progressing as well as asking the public for their views through surveys and during my meetings with residents. 

Arrangements for holding the Chief Constable to account

I have developed this Plan in consultation with the Chief Constable and he has signed up to its delivery. I have set 
up a governance and scrutiny structure which allows me to formally hold the Chief Constable to account for delivery 
and progress against the policing elements of this Plan and the measures associated with it. I publish the agenda 
and minutes of my scrutiny meetings and they are webcast for the public to view every quarter.  These can be found 
at www.surrey-pcc.gov.uk. 

Page 42

https://www.surrey-pcc.gov.uk


29

Police and Crime Plan for Surrey 2021-25 

Working with partners

Working in partnership is integral to cutting crime and making our communities safer as well as improving the wellbeing 
of residents. At the heart of this Plan is the aspiration to develop relationships with communities, businesses and our 
partners who share a vision to make Surrey safer by looking at the bigger picture and recognising that prevention 
and early intervention is crucial. I have spoken to a wide range of partners in developing this Plan and have aimed to 
ensure that it fits with the key partnership strategies already in place in Surrey. 

Collaboration 

Surrey Police has a strong history of collaboration with other police forces, most notably with Sussex Police. Several 
operational policing areas have collaborated teams, as well as much of our back-office services. This allows smaller, 
specialist units to come together to share resources and expertise, facilitates joint training and operating models, 
improves the policing of criminals operating across borders and helps drive out efficiencies and savings. Collaborated 
operational areas include firearms, the dogs unit, public order, roads policing, homicide and major crime, serious and 
organised crime, forensic investigations, surveillance, cyber-crime and economic crime. 

In order to make savings and reduce management costs, most of the support services for the two forces are 
also collaborated, including people services, information technology, finance, estates and fleet. Surrey Police also 
collaborates regionally with Hampshire, Kent, Sussex and Thames Valley on reducing serious and organised crime 
and on counter-terrorism and sharing specialist police technology.   

Page 43



30

Police and Crime Plan for Surrey 2021-25 

Equality and diversity

I will develop and maintain good links with all the diverse communities in Surrey, working with the Independent 
Advisory Group for Surrey Police, meeting a range of community groups and consulting widely on my plans. I 
support and will oversee the Surrey Police Equality, Diversity and Human Rights Strategy and I am committed to 
improving workforce diversity in Surrey Police. 

I also aim to make sure those who do go through the criminal justice system are dealt with fairly and effectively. I will 
work with partners to look at equality of service and to identify those elements that could be improved. 

Strategic Policing Requirement and national priorities

Police forces in England and Wales need to tackle a wide range of threats to keep the public safe. There are some 
that go beyond county boundaries and require police forces to provide a joint national response. 

A Strategic Policing Requirement (SPR) has been produced by the Home Office in consultation with the National 
Police Chiefs’ Council. It describes the main national threats for England and Wales and requires each Police and 
Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable to provide enough resources from their local areas to collectively meet 
the national threats of terrorism; civil emergencies, serious and organised crime, public disorder, large-scale cyber 
incidents and child sexual abuse. 

Commissioners and Chief Constables need to collaborate with others to ensure there is sufficient capacity to deal 
with national threats. I will work with the Chief Constable to make sure Surrey balances its requirement to meet 
national issues with protecting Surrey locally. 

I will also take into account the Policing Vision 2025, set out by the National Police Chiefs’ Council and the Association 
of Police and Crime Commissioners and the National Policing Measures set recently by the Government. 

Consultation, reporting and review 

I have consulted widely on the priorities set out within this Pan. You can view the more detailed results of these 
exercises on my website, www.surrey-pcc.gov.uk.  I will report progress against this Police and Crime Plan publicly 
to the Police and Crime Panel and I will issue an Annual Report to inform the public, partners and stakeholders what 
has been happening in the previous 12 months.

Page 44

https://www.surrey-pcc.gov.uk


31

Police and Crime Plan for Surrey 2021-25 

Contributors

I wish to thank all those residents and stakeholders who met with me and my Deputy Commissioner or 
completed our consultation survey. These included:

The 2,593 residents who responded to the Police and Crime Plan survey

Surrey’s MPs

Elected representatives from Surrey’s County, Borough, District and Parish Councils

The Surrey Police and Crime Panel 

The Chief Constable and his senior team

Surrey Police officers, staff and representatives from their unions

Schools, colleges and universities in Surrey  

Children and young people – professionals and representatives 

Mental Health support services

Victims Support Services

Prisons, Probation and other criminal justice partners

Road safety representatives

Rural crime representatives

Partners working to reduce youth violence  

Community safety representatives 

The Surrey Police Independent Advisory Group

Page 45



32

Police and Crime Plan for Surrey 2021-25 

Contact us
If you have any comments on this Plan or would like to know more about the work of the 
Commissioner please contact: 

Email:  surreypcc@surrey.police.uk

Telephone: 01483 630200

Post:  Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner
  PO Box 412
  Guildford
  Surrey 
  GU3 1BR 

Website: http://www.surrey-pcc.gov.uk   

  www.facebook.com/SurreyPCC

  www.twitter.com/SurreyPCC

  www.instagram.com/surreypcc  

To sign up to the In the Know community message system, visit www.intheknow.community 

For police news, crime prevention advice, help for victims of crime and ways to contact Surrey 
Police please visit www.surrey.police.uk. 

Always call 999 if you have a genuine emergency requiring the attendance of the police  
or if a crime is in progress. Call Surrey Police on 101 or use the online reporting system  
at www.surreypolice.uk/contact-us for non-emergency matters only.

If you are hard of hearing or speech impaired, you can textphone Surrey Police  
on 18001 101 (non-emergency) or 18000 (emergency) or text on 07967 987249  
or 999 (register at www.emergencysms.org.uk)

To report crime anonymously - call CrimeStoppers on 0800 555 111

© Additional images copyright of Surrey Police. Page 46

https://www.surrey-pcc.gov.uk
https://www.intheknow.community/index.asp
http://www.surrey.police.uk


  

Surrey Heath Borough Council 
External Partnership Select Committee 

7th June 2022 

 

Presentation from Russ Hayes Trustee of Bisley Village Hall 
 
 

 
Portfolio Holder:      Cllr Sarah- Jane Croke   
Strategic Director/Head of Service  Louise Livingston  
Report Author:   Jayne Boitoult – Comm Partnership Officer 

Wards Affected:    Bisley & West End  
 

 

 

 

Summary and purpose 
  

1. Bisley Village Hall is represented by  Russ Hayes a trustee who will give an update 

on the hall activities, and their plans in to the future.    

Background and Supporting Information 
 

2. Bisley Village Hall was built in 1874 and was originally the chapel to the Farm School 
and Shaftesbury School which later amalgamated to become Bisley Boys School.  
This closed in 1959. 
In 1955 a committee representing all the village organisations at that time was 
formed to raise funds to build a new village hall.  The fund raising too place over a 
number of years and in 1961 the funds were used to purchase the chapel and pay for 
a conversion.   
Bisley Village Hall was opened with a charitable status in 1962.  In 1982, the jubilee 
hall was added.  

 
The Hall is a registered charity and provides a host location for many local groups 
who deliver a wide range of facilities for this popular hall.   

 
3. Surrey Heath has supported the hall with various grants which are listed below:  
 

Jan 2021 – Ward Councillor Scheme £160 fire extinguisher replacement  
 
December 2018 – Community Fund Grant – Made to measure window £3,000.  
 
Dec 2016 – Buildings Grant – Kitchen renovation £15,540   

Recommendation  

Page 47

Agenda Item 8 



  

4. The Committee is asked to consider the presentation in relation to Surrey Heath, and 

any future steps which Members would wish to recommend to the Executive and/or 

Council. 

 
 
 

Page 48



  

Surrey Heath Borough Council 

External Partnerships Select Committee 

7 June 2022  

 

Committee Work Programme 
Strategic Director/Head of Service: Louise Livingston- Head of Human 

Resources, Performance & 
Communications  

Report Author: Jayne Boitoult, Community Development 
Officer 

 

 

Purpose 
To consider the Committee Work Programme for the 2022/23 municipal year 
 

Recommendation  
The Committee is asked to consider its work programme for the 2022/23 municipal 
year and agree any amendments. 
 

1. Background and Supporting Information 
 
1.1 Part 4 of the Constitution requires the Committee to agree a work programme 

for each municipal year.  
 

1.2 The Committee Work Programme may develop through the forthcoming municipal 
year, to meet new demands and changing circumstances. The Committee will be 
expected to review its work programme from time to time and to amend as required. 
 

2. Work Programme  
 

2.1 The Committee is scheduled to meet on the following dates for the remainder 
of the 2022/23 municipal year: 
 

• 6 September 2022  

• 29 November 2022 

• 28 February 2023 
 

2.2 The Committee is responsible for scrutiny of other agencies which affect the 
economic, social and environmental well-being of the Council’s area, including 
the Health and Wellbeing Board and the Police and Crime Panel. It also 
carries out the Council’s statutory crime and disorder function and will receive 
regular updates on community safety in Surrey Heath from the Borough 
Commander.  
 

Page 49

Agenda Item 9 



  

 

2.3 The work programme for 2022/23 is set out below. 
 

Meeting Date External Partner 
 

6 September 2022 • Accent Housing  

• Frimley CCG  

• Camberley Alzheimer Café  

• Surrey Search and Rescue  

29 November 2022 • Accent Housing  

• Voluntary Support North Surrey  

• SH Tree Wardens  

28 February 2023 • Accent Housing  

• Surrey Police  

• Citizens Advice Surrey Heath 

 
For future consideration: Bisley and West End Foodbank 

 

3. Proposal 

  
3.1 Members are asked to agree its outline work programme for 2022/23.  

 

4. Proposal 

  
4.1 Resource implications will depend on the issues brought before the 

Committee. The implications both in terms of prior to/during the meeting and 
any resultant work will have to be assessed when individual meetings are 
planned and the Committee decisions are known. 
 

 

 

Page 50


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	Minutes

	6 Surrey Police
	Surrey Heath Partnership Plan on a Page 22/23

	7 OPCC Police and Crime Panel – Update from Surrey Heath Panel Member
	Police-and-Crime-Plan for Surrey -2021-25

	8 Bisley Village Hall
	9 Committee Work Programme



